LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Date:

Monday 24 January 2022

Time:

2.00 pm

Venue:

Microsoft Teams – please click here

Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Martin Tiedemann, Councillor Linda Bray, Councillor Emma Nye,
Councillor Irfan Mohammed, Councillor Rezina Chowdhury, Councillor Ibrahim Dogus, Deputy Mayor,
Councillor Pauline George, Councillor Becca Thackray and Councillor Philip Normal

Substitute Members
Councillor Joshua Lindsey, Councillor John Kazantzis, Councillor Jennie Mosley, Councillor Matthew
Bennett, Councillor Andy Wilson, Councillor Danial Adilypour, Councillor Donatus Anyanwu, Councillor
Claire Holland, Councillor Jon Davies, Councillor Liz Atkins, Councillor Marcia Cameron, Councillor
Timothy Windle, Councillor Stephen Donnelly and Councillor Clair Wilcox
Members required for this meeting will be
Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Emma Nye and Councillor Becca Thackray

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Julia Skinner, Telephone: 020 7926 0147; Email: jskinner@lambeth.gov.uk

Published on: Friday 14 January 2022

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

How members of the public can view the meeting online
This is a Microsoft Teams Live Event meeting. If you are new to Microsoft Teams, clicking the
above link will take you to the meeting page where you will be prompted to download the app or
watch on the web instead. Please follow the instructions to watch on the web. On doing so, you
can join our live event anonymously.
How Members of the Committee and public participants can access the meeting
Please refer to the joining instructions you have already received – do not use the link above

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact
Democratic Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office).
Please note that the Chair of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of
reasons including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that
it can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the
website www.lambeth.gov.uk)

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING

Page
Nos.
1

Election of Chair

2

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para.
4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a
committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from
the meeting room during the whole of the consideration of that matter
and must not participate in any vote on that matter unless a
dispensation has been obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

3

Minutes

1-4

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 7 January 2022
as a correct record of the proceedings.

4

Licensing Applications for the Grant / Review of a Premises
Licence

5 - 10

(Report XX/16-17 and appendices)
Strategic Director, Neighbourhoods and Growth
Contact: Robert Gardner, Principal Licensing Officer, 020 7926 6122
Email: RGardner@lambeth.gov.uk

4a

Gorillas Units 198 To 199 Carlisle Lane London (Bishops
Ward)

11 - 32

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES
Friday 7 January 2022 at 2.00 pm

Members Present:

1

Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Rezina Chowdhury and Councillor
Becca Thackray

Election of Chair
MOVED by Councillor Rezina Chowdhury, SECONDED by Councillor Becca Thackray
RESOLVED: That Councillor Fred Cowell be elected Chair for the meeting

2

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
There were none.

3

Minutes
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 18 November 2021 and 30
November 2021 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record of the proceedings.

4

Licensing Applications for the Grant / Review of a Premises Licence

4a

Costcutter Local, 300 Streatham High Road, London SW16 6HG (St Leonards
ward)
Presentation by the Licensing Officer
The Sub-Committee was informed that this was an application for a new premises license. The
Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to chapters 2, 3, 8 and 9 of the Statutory Guidance, and
to Sections 1, 3, 4 and 8 of the Statement of Licensing Policy, as the ones particularly relevant
to this application. The options available to the Sub-Committee were set out in paragraph 5.11
of the report on page 12.
Ms Pam Riley, the Licensing Officer, confirmed:




This was an application made by Mr Nira Suresh, the licensing agent for the applicant,
Mr Soosairaj Arokiasamy,
The applicant was seeking authorisation for the Sale by Retail of Alcohol, Monday to
Sunday from 00:00 to 00:00 (off the premises), 7 days a week.
The applicant had confirmed that they would surrender the current licence in place at the

Page 2





premises if this application was successful.
A copy of the application form and the floor plan can be found on page 21 to 30 of the
reports pack.
The applicant had provided an operating schedule that could be found at page 31
There were six representations received against the application, from the Licensing
Authority, Public Protection, the Metropolitan Police and three residents and based on all
four of the Licensing Objectives.
The representations had been made available to the applicant via his agent and can be
found on pages 31 to 41 of the main reports pack.

Presentation by the Applicant
In response to questions from Members, the applicant, Mr Soosairaj Arokiasamy informed the
Sub-Committee that:








He was applying for a 24 hour licence as he seeking to grow the business and extend
the operating hours to meet his personal expenses and financial obligations.
Although a 24 hour off-licence in a residential area was contrary to Lambeth’s Licensing
Policy, he said that he would follow the regulations by training staff and refuse the sale of
alcohol to ‘street drinkers’.
He would contact the previous owner to surrender the current licence in place as soon
as the application was granted.
Following training for four members of staff, they would be able to identify the difference
between a street drinker or residential customer.
He had ten years of experience and was able to manage aggressive patrons politely,
while it was not often that they had to respectfully decline the sale.
It was not believed that seeking a 24 hour licence would contribute to the Anti-Social
Behaviour already experienced in the area, related to alcohol consumption, as there was
already a 24 hour off-licence close by.
Noise nuisance was not seen to be an issue as patrons were not believed to consume
alcohol outside the premises.

Presentation by Interested Parties
Ms Bina Patel, representing the Licensing Authority said that:
 Whilst each application must be assessed on its individual merits and there is another
premises in the vicinity with a 24 hour licence, this does not mean the application should
be granted for these premises as doing so may aggravate existing nuisance issues in
the area.
 Nuisance issues existed in the area and the Licensing Authority was not confident that
the applicant had adequately addressed these issues in his operating schedule so as to
minimise the risk of nuisance or to otherwise maintain the Licensing Objectives.
 The applicant had failed to provide adequate measures to mitigate the issues, and while
training the four members of staff was new information to the Licensing Authority, no
specifics had been provided on the type of training.
 The Licensing Authority accordingly recommended the application be refused.

Mr Dave Watson, representing the Metropolitan Police, said that:




The area was prone to issues surrounding street drinkers who often congregated around
Streatham Green Church and it was not correct to assume all street drinkers are
homeless, often leaving an area once a licensed premises has closed.
Street drinkers are often victims to abuse of alcohol and have not received the help they
require, sometimes committing low-level crime to facilitate their habit.
The Metropolitan Police believed that granting this application and thus extending the

Page 3





Sale by Retail of Alcohol to 24 hours at these premises would enable street drinkers to
remain in the area and attract street drinkers from other areas.
The mentioned premises with the 24 hour licence was in fact a large supermarket which
was managed with security and had large numbers of staff present on the premises.
This premises would attract commuters who had frequented the night-time economy who
would then remain in the area thus increasing the risk of Anti-Social Behaviours.
The Metropolitan Police recommended the application be refused.

Mr Keith Badrick, representing Public Protection said that:
 The area had daytime services that specialised on dependency issues, but was prone to
gang-related vulnerabilities and dependency issues.
 There was an incident at a 24 hour off-licence in the area relating to gang violence and
the shop owner was unable to prevent this from happening.
 Youth groups and other groups gather outside of these types of premises and Public
Protection was not confident that the applicant would be able to ensure these types of
incidences did not have a negative impact on the local community or his business or
would be able to uphold the Licensing Objectives as necessary.
 Public Protection recommended the application be refused.
At this point in the proceedings, the interested parties confirmed that the application’s lack of
detail meant no conditions could be imposed that would satisfy the concerns they had in respect
to the introduction of another 24 hour license.
In response to questions from Members, Mr Soosairaj Arokiasamy confirmed:



That growing the business was his motivation for the application and he would meet
legal requirements by prohibiting the sale of alcohol to nuisance persons.
He had not untaken local business research prior to the hearing but had extensive
experience.

Adjournment and Decision
At 14:53, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the legal advisor and
clerk to deliberate in private.
The Sub-Committee had heard and considered representations from the Licensing Authority,
Metropolitan Police, Public Protection, and submissions made during the hearing. Legal advice
was given to the Sub-Committee on the options open to them and the need for any decision to
be appropriate and proportionate.
The Sub-Committee decided to refuse the application for the following reasons:





The operation of a licence for extended hours raised additional concerns that were not
present in the operation of the current licence and stand a risk of increasing a number of
issues and matters that currently affect residents such as ASB and street drinking.
Resident concerns and concerns raised by the Responsible Authorities were of such a
magnitude that they needed to be outweighed and addressed by carefully drafted
conditions in the licence application, with the applicant demonstrating a detailed
knowledge of the area and crafting conditions on the licence that were appropriate to the
area it was operating in. The Sub-Committee were of the view that this wasn’t addressed
either in the written application or during the questioning of the Sub-Committee.
The Sub-Committee considered it appropriate to refuse the application and believed this
was a proportionate step, given the increased risk and potential for harm that a 24-hour
licence can cause, as well as the increased potential for the objectives of the Licensing
Act not to be met in the course of a 24 hour licence’s operation.

RESOLVED: To reject the application for the reasons as outlined above.

Page 4
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to reject
the application and provided reasons for the decision as outlined above. The Sub-Committee
had considered all the options available to them and ultimately felt that the license application
did not meet the concerns which had been raised. The Chair confirmed that written notification
of the decision would be sent in due course and the applicant had 21 days to appeal the
decision.

The meeting ended at 15:00
CHAIR
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Thursday 13 January 2022
Date of Despatch: Monday 17 January 2022
Contact for Enquiries: Julia Skinner
Tel: 020 7926 0147
E-mail: jskinner@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4

Page 5

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 24TH JANUARY 2022
Licensing Application for the Grant and Review of Premises Licence:
4a. Gorillas, Units 198 To 199 Carlisle Lane London SE1 7LF (Bishops)

Wards: Bishops
Portfolio: Deputy Leader of the Council (Jobs, Skills and Community Safety) Councillor Jacqui
Dyer
Report Authorised by: Bayo Dosunmu: Strategic Director of Resident Services
Contact for enquiries: Ola Owojori, Licensing Officer, Public Protection and Regulatory
Services, 020 7926 1649, Oowojori@lambeth.gov.uk
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report sets out details of applications for the variation of a premises licence on which
representations have been submitted by interested parties.

RECOMMENDATION
That the application set out in the Appendix to this report be considered having regard to the Council's
Licensing Policy, the Licensing Objectives and the representation(s) received.

CONSULTATION
Name of
consultee
Selina Waife
and Jean-Marc
Moocarme

Directorate or
Organisation
Legal and
Governance

Date sent to
consultee

Date response
received from
consultee

Comments
appear in
report
(paragraph(s))

10.01.2022

11.01.2022

N/A

REPORT HISTORY
Authorised by
Executive Member

Date report drafted

Report deadline

Date report sent

10.01.2022

11.01.2022

12.01.2022

APPENDICES
1. Gorillas Units 198 To 199 Carlisle Lane London SE1 7LF (Bishops)

Page 6
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

A licence from the Council is required for the supply of alcohol, and regulated entertainment.

1.2

A person (including a business) may make an application for a new Premises Licence or a
variation to an existing Premises Licence. Where representations are received a Licensing SubCommittee must consider the application. The Sub-Committee, when considering such
applications, shall carry out its function under the Licensing Act 2003 with a view to the Council's
Licensing Policy, Statutory Guidance and promoting the licensing objectives.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

The Licensing Sub-Committee has responsibility for exercising the Council's powers in respect of
the Licensing Act 2003. Determination by the Committee of the applications appended to this
report is required because representation(s) to the application(s) have been received.

2.2

Details of the application(s) are set out in the Appendix to this report. All statutory consultation
requirements have been complied with by the applicant(s) as set out in paragraph 3 below. The
results of consultation are reported in the appendices relating to each application. Public notice
has been given in accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.

2.3

The applicants and persons making representations have been invited to attend the meeting.

2.4

The fees for premises and personal licences are prescribed within the Licensing Act 2003; in the
case of Premises Licences, the fees are based on the business rate of the premises.

3.

CONSULTATION REQUIREMENTS

3.1

The Licensing Act 2003 requires applicants for licences to consult and submit relevant
documentation to the Responsible Authorities as follows:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.

Fire Authority;
Health & Safety Section;
Noise Service;
Police;
Social Services;
Home Office
Town Planning; and,
Trading Standards.

3.2

Applicants are also required to advertise the application by displaying public notices on or near the
premises and by advertising the application in a local newspaper available in the vicinity of
premises. An applicant’s’ failure to comply with all of the above consultation requirements would
invalidate the application. All applications set out in the appendix of this report have complied with
the consultation requirements.

4.
4.1

FINANCE

5.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Page 7
5.1

The licensing of premises for the supply of alcohol, regulated entertainment and late night
refreshment fall within the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.

5.2

When considering licence applications the Sub-Committee shall carry out its function with a view to
the Council's Licensing Policy, Statutory Guidance and promoting the licensing objectives. The
Licensing Objectives are:
a.
b.
c.
d.

5.3

the prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety;
the prevention of public nuisance; and,
the protection of children from harm.

The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have:
a.
b.
c.
d.

a direct relationship to the promotion of one or more of the 4 licensing objectives;
regard to the statement of licensing policy;
regard to the Secretary of State's Guidance; and,
there must not be a 'blanket policy' to the extent that it is applied so rigidly that an exercise of
discretion in each individual case is precluded.

Applications must be considered with regard to the principles of fair process and the Human Rights
Act.
5.4

The purpose of Lambeth’s Statement of Licensing Policy is to make clear to applicants and
relevant representatives the considerations that will be taken into account when determining
applications. It is also intended to guide the Licensing Committee when considering licensing
applications; however the Licensing Committee must consider each application on its own merit
and only allow exceptions to its own policy where the circumstances of the application justify it.

5.5

Subject to both the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy and Statutory Guidance having been
properly considered a Sub Committee may depart from them if there are good reasons for doing
so. Full reasons must be given and Sub Committees should be aware that such departures could
give rise to an appeal or judicial review.

5.6

The Statutory Guidance, Chapter 10, states that only necessary, proportionate conditions, which
promote one or more of the licensing objectives, should be attached to the licence if it is granted
(paragraph 10.11). The Licensing Authority may therefore only impose such conditions as are
necessary to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the consideration of the
representations (paragraph 10.11), and should avoid straying into undisputed areas (paragraph
9.24). Statutory Guidance also states that the pool of conditions that are supplied by the Secretary
of State should not be applied universally irrespective of particular circumstances, but may be used
as examples that can be tailored to suit individual premises and particular situations.

5.7

When considering an application for the variation of an existing licence only the variation is subject
to determination. No changes can be made to a licence or the conditions attached unless they are
subject to the variation application.

5.8

Members are advised that when considering applications to vary an existing licence the following
options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Part 3, Section 35, paragraphs 3
and 4.

Page 8
5.9

Where relevant representations are made, the authority must – having regard to the
representations – take such steps (if any), as it considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. The steps are:
a.
b.

modify the conditions of the licence (conditions are deemed to be modified if any are altered,
omitted or any new condition added); or,
reject the whole or part of the application

If neither of these steps are taken, the application must be granted.
5.10 Members are advised that when considering applications for a new Premises Licence the following
options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Chapter 17, Part 3, Section 18
paragraph 4.
5.11 Where relevant representations are made, the authority must – having regard to the
representations, take such steps (if any), as it considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. The steps are:
a.

b.
c.
d.

to grant the licence subject to:
i.
the conditions mentioned in subsection (2)(a) modified to such extent as the authority
considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and
ii.
any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the licence;
to exclude from the scope of the license any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates;
to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; or,
to reject the application.

5.12 When determining an application for a review of a premises licence members may take any of the
following steps they consider necessary to promote the licensing objectives:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

to modify the conditions of the licence;
to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
to remove the designated premises supervisor;
to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
to revoke the licence; or,
to take no action.

5.13 It is considered inappropriate for officers involved in the administration of applications to make
recommendations. However officers from the Responsible Authorities may request conditions be
imposed on a licence and make recommendations with regard to the licensing objectives.
5.14 In accordance with the provisions of Part 1 of Schedule 5 of the Act, where a Licensing Authority
rejects an application for a new premises licence or refuses (in whole or in part) an application to
vary a premises licence the applicant may appeal the decision.
5.15 Where the Licensing Authority grants an application for a new premises licence the premises
licence holder can appeal any decision to impose conditions on the premises licence, to exclude a
licensable activity from the scope of the premises licence or to refuse to specify a named individual
as the Designated Premises Supervisor.
5.16 Where a person who made relevant representations in relation to an application contends: that the
licence should not have been granted; or that different or additional conditions should have been

Page 9
imposed on the licence; or that a licensable activity should have been excluded from the scope of
the premises licence; or that the licensing authority should have refused to specify a named
individual as the Designated Premises Supervisor, they may appeal the decision.
5.17 Appeals are to be made to a Magistrates’ Court within 21 days beginning with the date of
notification of the decision. Further details are set out in the Act.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 11

Agenda Item 4a

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 24TH JANUARY 2022
Item No: 4a
Report title: Gorillas Units 198 To 199 Carlisle Lane London (Bishops Ward)
Applicant: Gorillas Technologies UK Ltd
Application type: Premises Licence (Grant)
Application date: 13 September 2021
Wards: Bishops
Premises Type: Online Delivery Service
Policy Context: Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024
Report author: Mr Ola Owojori, Licensing Officer, Public Protection, Regulatory Services and
Assurance, 0207 926 1649, oowojori@lambeth.gov.uk
APPLICATION SUMMARY
This is an application for a Premises Licence to allow for the sale of alcohol on Monday – Sunday from
08:00 to 00:00

POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Licensing Objectives (chapter 5, pages 9 to 15 and Appendices 1 to 4, pages 41 to 45 of the policy)
The Licensing Objective engaged by this application is:


The prevention of public nuisance

Cumulative Impact Policy (policy 7, pages 26 to 27 and appendix 10, page 58 of the policy)
The premises are not situated in the Clapham Cumulative Impact Zone.
Hours of sale and Location (Policy 8, pages 28 to 29 & Appendix 5, pages 46 to 47)
The premises are proposed to be operated as a delivery service of convenience goods including
alcohol. Alcohol is proposed to be sold for consumption off the premises via an online platform and the
area in which the premises are located is according to the Statement of Licensing Policy (the Policy),
Appendix 7 an area generally deemed to be residential in nature.

Page 12
The Policy recommends in this location the earliest start time for licensable activity of 11:00 hours and a
terminal hour of 23:00 hours Monday to Sunday for premises of this kind in a residential area.
Note: The hours above are not absolute and are intended as a guide for applicants to consider when
completing their operating schedules. Each application will be considered on its own merits. Applicants
seeking hours later than those indicated in the Policy should provide detailed evidence as to why their
application will not have a negative impact on the licensing objectives.
The Policy refers to Delivery Services businesses at Policy 16 (erroneously marked as Policy 15),
paragraph 22 and further guidance is set out at paragraphs 3.8 – 3.10 and 10.50 of the s. 182 Revised
Guidance (2018).

Page 13
1.

APPLICATION

1.1

This is an application for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2

The applicant is seeking authorisation for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises,
during the following times:
Monday - Sunday 08:00 - 00:00

1.3

The opening hours for the premises are proposed as:
Monday to Sunday 08:00 - 00:00

1.4

A copy of the application form and the plan are attached as Annex A.

2.

REPRESENTATION

2.1

One representation was received against the application from a ward councillor, which is based on
the licensing objective of the prevention of public nuisance.

2.2

The representation highlights concern in respect of the negative impact of the premises in the area
if the application is granted. A copy of the representation was provided to the applicant and is
attached to the report as Annex B

2.3

The applicant has agreed conditions with the Licensing Authority and the Metropolitan Police, which
has been communicated to the objector. A list of the conditions is attached to the report as Annex
C

2.4

The last date for making representations was on 11th October 2021.

3.

CURRENT LICENCE

3.1

There is currently no premises licence in place for this address.

4.

BACKGROUND HISTORY

4.1

The premises are to be operated as a grocery store providing delivery services of foodstuffs including
alcohol only. The general public would not be admitted to make purchases instore.

4.2

This is the fifth application from the applicant for locations in the borough within the last twelve
months, four of which have been granted under delegated authority following agreement with
interested parties.

4.3

Two Temporary Event Notices were submitted on 21st and 22nd December 2021 for authorisation to
permit sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises on 13th to 17th and 19th to 24th January
2022.

4.4

The Planning Authority didn’t make a formal representation in respect of the application. However,
they did provide the following comments, which have been sent to the applicant. “There is no
formal planning history for these arches, though likely historically the arches may have been used
as an ancillary space for Network Rail and therefore are likely to have been in use as general
industry (Use Class B2). The proposed use appears to be what is being termed a “dark grocery”.
Recent appeal decisions as well as advice from senior officers is that these uses constitute sui

Page 14
generis uses; i.e. they do not sit within any use class and therefore will require planning permission
for the commencement of any new use. As such, the commencement of the use proposed in the
license application would result in a breach of planning control and may be subject of enforcement
action”.

5.

OBSERVATIONS

5.1

The parts of the Statutory Guidance (April 2018) which are particularly relevant to this application
and the representation received are Chapters:
2)
3)
8)
9)
10)

5.2

The Licensing Objectives;
Licensable Activities
Applications for Premises Licenses;
Determining Applications; and,
Conditions Attached to Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates; and,

The parts of the Statement of Licensing Policy that are particularly relevant to this application and
the representations are Sections:
Chapter 5 - The Licensing Objectives
Policy 1 - Process for applications
Policy 3 - Partnership working
Policy 4 - Enforcement approach
Policy 8 – Hours of sale and locations
Policy 16: Delivery Services (note. erroneously marked as Policy 15)
Appendix 3: Prevention of Public Nuisance
Appendix 5: Types of premises and recommended hours
Appendix 6: Types of premises and potential impact
Appendix 8: What to expect from a Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing

6.

CONCLUSION
Members are required to consider the application in light of all the relevant information, and if
approval is given, may attach such conditions appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.
The options available to Members of the Licensing Sub Committee are:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Grant the application as it currently stands;
Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers necessary for the
promotion of the licensing objectives;
Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the application
relates;
To refuse to specify the individual named in the applications as the DPS; or,
Reject the application.

Page 15
CONSULTATION INFORMATION

Department(s) or Organisation(s)
Health & Safety Section (internal)
Noise service (internal)
Social Services (internal)
Licensing Service (internal)
Planning (internal)
Trading Standards (internal)
Fire Authority (external)
Police Licensing Unit (external)
Health Authority (external)

Consulted
(Y/N)
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

Date
Response
Received
06/10/2021
06/10/2021
11/10/2021
-

Comments
summarized in
report (Y/N)
N
N
N
Y
Y
N
N
Y
N

APPENDICES AND REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

Appendices
Reference documents
Local Government Act 1972 – Access to
information documents used in the preparation of
this report

Annex A – Application form and plan
Annex B – Representation
Annex C – List of Conditions
1. The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”).
2. Amended Guidance issued under Section 182
of the Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018) (“the
Guidance”).
3. Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 2024 (“the Policy”).

This page is intentionally left blank

Lambeth Council
Lambeth Council, P.O. Box 734, Winchester, S023 5DG
T: 020 7926 1000
E: infoservice@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 17
Annex A

New Premises Licence

Premises Details
Premises Address *

Arch 198-199 Carlisle Lane London London SE1 7LF

Telephone number at premises (if any)
Non-domestic value of premises. *

£ 49250

Applicant Details
I/We apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (the
premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the
Licensing Act 2003.
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence
as:

a person other than an individual -as a limited company/
limited liability partnership

Applicant Details
If you are applying as a person described in one of the above
please confirm: *

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which
involves the use of the premises for licensable activities; or

1/8

Page 18

Ref: DSFX1631543412400

Other Applicant (Non Individual)
Name *

GORILLAS TECHNOLOGIES UK LTD

Registered Address *

142
Old Street

Town/City *

London

County
Postcode *

EC1V 9BW

Registered Number (where applicable)

13008621

Description of applicant (for example partnership, company,
unincorporated association, etc) *

company

Telephone Number
Email *

Operating Schedule
When do you want the premises licence to start? *

12/10/2021

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period,
when do you want it to end?
grocery store providing delivery services of foodstuffs only to
which the general public are not admitted

Please give a general description of the premises. *
If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises
at any one time, please state the number expected to attend.

2/8

Page 19

Ref: DSFX1631543412400

Operating Schedule
What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? * (Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act
2003 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)
Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2) *

Plays

Films

Indoor Sporting Events

Boxing or Wrestling

Live Music

Recorded Music

Performances of Dance

Anything of a similar description falling under Music or Dance

Provision of late night refreshment

✓

Supply of Alcohol

3/8

Page 20

Ref: DSFX1631543412400

Supply of Alcohol Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the supply of alcohol. (please read guidance note 7)*
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Every Day
08:00
00:00

Supply of Alcohol
Will the supply of alcohol be for consumptionon premises or
off premises or both? (please read guidance note 8) *

Off the premises

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol.
(please read guidance note 5)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for the supply of alcoholat different
times from the Standard days and times listed?(please read
guidance note 6)

4/8

Page 21

Ref: DSFX1631543412400

Designated Premises Supervisor
State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated premises supervisor
(Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the checklist at the end of the form)
Title *

Miss

First name *

Jessica

Surname *

Kilbourne

Street address *
Mare Street

Town/City *

London

County
Postcode *

E8 1HA

Personal Licence Number (if known)
Issuing Licensing Authority (if known)

Hackney

Adult Entertainment
Please highlight any adult entertainment or services,
activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use
of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 9).

None

5/8

Page 22

Ref: DSFX1631543412400

Opening Hours Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where the premises are open to the public. (please read guidance note 7) * Please enter times in
24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Every Day
08:00
00:00

Licensing Objectives
Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a result of the proposed variation:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e)
(please read guidance note 10)

The premises will operate as a delivery only business to
which the general public have no access. Delivery riders shall
only use e bikes or e cycles to minimise noise and disruption.
A Challenge 25 system shall be in operation and no alcohol
shall be delivered if no proof of age can be produced when
requested Purchasers of alcohol shall be required to confirm
that they are over 18 before purchase is completed.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

CCTV shall be in operation within the premises. see box a

c) Public safety

see box a

d) The prevention of public nuisance

see box a

e) The protection of children from harm

see box a

Declarations
Declaration Type *

Sole Applicant - Individual or Other

6/8

Page 23

Ref: DSFX1631543412400

Declarations
I have uploaded a copy of the plan of the premises. I have uploaded a copy of the consent form completed by the individual
I wish to be designated premises supervisor, if applicable. I understand I must now advertise my application. I understand
that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be rejected. Applicable to all individual applicants,
including those in partnership which is not a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships I
have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom (please read note 15)
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY
CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT' 'IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT
1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE
DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT
WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY
UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION
21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH
REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.
Signature/Declaration of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see Guidance Note 11 &amp; 12).
If signing/applying on behalf of the applicant, please state your name and in what capacity you are authorised to sign/apply.
When submitting an on-line application form the 'Declaration made' checkbox must be selected.

✓

I understand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or
if I am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and
that my licence will become invalid if I cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

✓

The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him
or her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to
work, if appropriate (please see note 15).

Full Name *

Craig Baylis

Date *

13/09/2021

Capacity *

Applicant's Solicitor

✓

Declaration made

Do you wish to provide alternative correspondence details? *

Yes

7/8

Page 24

Ref: DSFX1631543412400

Alternative Correspondence
Please provide Contact Name and postal address for correspondence associated with this application.
Title

Mr

First name

Craig

Surname

Baylis

Street address *

Town/City *

Bonhill Street

London

County
Postcode *

EC2A 4DN

Telephone Number
Email *

Email confirmation
On submission an email confirmation will be sent using the details below
Forename

Craig

Surname /Company Name

Baylis

Email *
Telephone

8/8

Page 25

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 29

Annex C - Conditions
Conditions agreed with the Police and the Licensing Authority
1. The sale of alcohol from the premises shall be for delivery only by a delivery rider.
2. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All entry and
exit points must be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in a
light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises are open.
All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time
stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request
of Police or authorised officer of Lambeth Council.
3. Subject to Data Protection guidance and legislation, the management of the premises
will ensure that key staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV and will be able to
download selected footage onto a disk/USB Stick for the Police or authorised officers of
the Local Authority or UK Border Agency without difficulty, delay or charge.
4. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV
system must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested and within a
maximum of 24 hours of the initial request.
5. Any CCTV breakdown or system failure will be notified to the Police and Local Authority
immediately & remedied as soon as practicable. Repair records / invoices shall be kept
electronically for at least 12 months and be readily available to be viewed by all
authorised persons upon request.
6. The precise positions of the cameras may be agreed, subject to compliance with Data
protection legislation, with the police.
7. Notices shall be prominently displayed within the premises stating that CCTV is in
operation.
8. The CCTV system will be maintained and fully operational throughout the hours that the
premises are open for any licensable activity.
9. An incident log shall be kept at the premises and made available on request to an
authorised officer of the Lambeth Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24
hours of the incident and will record the following:
all crimes reported to the venue
any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
any incidents of disorder
any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment
any refusal of the sale of alcohol including date, time and name of staff
member
any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
Such log shall be available to a Police Officer or Officer of Lambeth Council upon
request.
10. Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such
as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.
11. It will be the responsibility of the management that, any outside companies used for
delivery must adhere to a strict "challenge 25" policy. It will be the responsibility of the
management to keep up to date with that company's policy and to review any
partnerships based on this policy.
12. All staff engage in the sale or supply of alcohol shall be trained in the prevention of
underage sales, drunkenness and proxy sales before being allowed to sell or supply any
alcohol. Introduction training must be completed and documented prior to the delivery of

Page 30

the alcohol by the rider. Refresher /reinforcement training must be completed and
documented at intervals of no more than six months. The training should be clearly
documented and signed and dated by both the trainer and the member of staff receiving
it. The documentation shall be available for inspection on request by an authorised
officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable.
13. All alcohol sale orders shall be made via an online platform for delivery only and must be
paid for by debit or credit card or other mobile payment or digital wallet service
14. For all orders taken over the phone or via the internet, customers should be informed of
Challenge 25 and the requirement to have ID ready for inspection should the need arise
before receipt of alcoholic beverages.
15. Each delivery containing alcohol shall be labelled with the words "Age Restricted
Product" or
similar.
16. Details of the order (including the type, amount of alcohol, name, and address of the
customer) must be included with the order, and must be accessible to any Police
Constable or Local Authority Officer inspecting the order Details of customer orders shall
be retained for a period of 6 months.
17. Website and all promotional materials should be designed and set out in a way which is
consistent with the responsible retail of alcohol.
18. All riders shall be trained to record refusals of sales of alcohol in a refusals log/register.
The log/register will contain:
details of the time and date the refusal was made;
the identity of the rider refusing the sale;
details of the alcohol the person attempted to purchase.
This log/register will be available for inspection by a police officer or other authorised
officer on request.
19. The premises will operate as a delivery only business. The premises shall not be open
to the public and will be used for the dispatch of alcohol only.
20. In all instances whereby a delivery is made, the person supplying age restricted goods
must exercise the Challenge 25 Policy to the recipient whereby at the point of delivery,
where the recipient is believed to be under the age of 25, appropriate age verification
identification must be obtained from said person to prove they are above the age of 18.
21. All delivery orders shall be to a person inside a registered residential or business
address. There shall be no deliveries to public/communal areas or open spaces.
22. Riders will only be permitted to collect orders and deliver by pedal bike or electric bike.
23. Riders will not be permitted to smoke in the immediate vicinity of the premises.
24. Riders will not be permitted to congregate in the immediate vicinity of the premises.
25. The licence holder shall ensure that its riders do not park vehicles on the highway
pavement or in resident parking bays in the vicinity of the premises. This restriction does
not apply to the paved area immediately outside of the premises.
26. Riders will be instructed not to loiter in the vicinity of residential premises.
27. No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall
take place between 22:00 hours and 08:00 hours on the following day.
28. No deliveries to the premises shall take place between 0000 hours and 08:00 hours the
following day. This restriction does not apply to the delivery of bread, milk, newspapers
and magazine. The licence holder will use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that such
deliveries between and 08:00 are carried out with the minimum amount of noise so as
not to disturb residential neighbours.
29. There shall be a dedicated area for delivery personnel to safely park their vehicle and
collect the customer order.

Page 31

30. All delivery riders shall receive training in age restricted sales:
a) Induction training must be completed and documented prior to the delivery of alcohol
by the rider.
b) Refresher/reinforcement training must be completed and documented at intervals of
no more than 6 months.
c) Training records will be available for inspection by a police officer or other authorised
officer on request.
d) Training records will be electronically stored by the licence holder for a period of 12
months.
31. A Noise Management Policy shall be in place to ensure appropriate measures are in
place to minimise noise and disturbance caused by the dispatch of deliveries and the
deliveries themselves.
32. Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits requesting staff and
couriers to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area
quietly.
33. A warning shall be displayed on the digital platform on which an order is placed informing
customers that they must be aged 18 or over to make a purchase of alcohol and
notifying customers that the rider will carry out age verification on delivery. The customer
will be required to declare that he or she is aged 18 or over. If the rider is not satisfied
that the customer is aged 18 or over any alcohol in the order will be withheld.
34. Members of the public will not have access to the premises at any time.
35. Orders containing alcohol may only be delivered between 0800 and 0000
36. The details shall be shown on the printout receipt dispatched with the order. All delivery
drivers and riders must allow any Police Constable or Local Authority Officer to inspect
any alcohol or order details on request
37. Staff making the deliveries of alcohol must be at least 18 years of age.

This page is intentionally left blank

